
 Pages 1 - 82  

United States District Court 

Northern District of California 

Before The Honorable Marilyn Hall Patel 

RealNetworks, Incorporated, ) 
et al.,                     ) 
                            ) 
           Plaintiff,       ) 
                            ) 
  vs.                       )         No. C08-4548 MHP 
                            )        
DVD Copy Control            )           and related  
Association, Incorporated,  ) 
et al.,                     )         No. C08-4719 MHP 
                            )   
           Defendant.       ) 
____________________________)                             
                               San Francisco, Calif ornia 
                               Monday, December 22,  2008 
 

Reporter's Transcript Of Proceedings  
 
Appearances : 
 
For Plaintiff:          Wilson, Sonsini, Goodrich &  Rosati 
                        650 Page Mill Road 
                        Palo Alto, California  9430 4-1050 
                   By:  Michael A. Berta, Esquire  
                        James DiBoise, Esquire  
                        Leo Cunningham, Esquire  
                        Tracy Tosh Lane, Esquire  

For Defendants:         White & Case 
                        3000 El Camino Real 
                        Five Palo Alto Square, 9th Floor 
                        Palo Alto, California  9430 6 
                   By:  Mark Frederick Lambert, Esquire  

(Appearances continued on next page.) 
 
Reported By:       Sahar McVickar, RPR, CSR No. 12963 
                   Official Reporter, U.S. District Court 
                   For the Northern District of California 
 
             (Computerized Transcription By Eclipse ) 

Sahar McVickar, C.S.R. No. 12963, RPR
Official Court Reporter, U.S. District Court

(415) 626-6060

Case3:08-cv-04548-MHP   Document466    Filed09/16/09   Page1 of 82
Realnetworks, Inc. et al v. DVD Copy Control Association, Inc. et al Doc. 466

Dockets.Justia.com

http://dockets.justia.com/docket/court-candce/case_no-3:2008cv04548/case_id-207693/
http://docs.justia.com/cases/federal/district-courts/california/candce/3:2008cv04548/207693/466/
http://dockets.justia.com/


     2

 1 Appearances, continued:  

 2 For Defendant:          Munger Tolles & Olson 
                        355 South Grand Avenue, 35t h Floor 

 3                         Los Angeles, California  90071 
                   By:  Bart Harper Williams, Esquire  

 4                         Rohit Singla, Esquire  
                        Lawrence Barth, Esquire  

 5  
                        Akin Gump Strauss Hauer & F eld, LLP 

 6                         580 California Street, 15 th Floor 
                        San Francisco, California  94104 

 7                    By:  Reginald David Steer, Esquire                      
 

 8                         Motion Picture Associatio n of America 
                        15503 Ventura Boulevard 

 9                         Encino, California  91436  
                   By:  Daniel Ernest Robbins, Esquire  

10  
                        Law Offices of Gary Paul Go eckner 

11                         15301 Ventura Boulevard, Building E 
                        Sherman Oaks, California  9 1403 

12                    By:  Gary Paul Goeckner, Esquire  

13  

14  

15 ---o0o---  

16  

17  

18  

19  

20  

21  

22  

23  

24  

25  

Sahar McVickar, C.S.R. No. 12963, RPR
Official Court Reporter, U.S. District Court

(415) 626-6060

Case3:08-cv-04548-MHP   Document466    Filed09/16/09   Page2 of 82



     3

 1 Monday, December  22, 2008                              2: 48 p.m.       

 2 P R O C E E D I  N G S 

 3 THE CLERK:  Calling civil 08-4548, civil 08-4719,

 4 RealNetworks, Inc. versus DVD Copy Control Associ ates, et al.

 5 THE COURT:  By the way, the two of you who are

 6 leaving -- 

 7 (Attorneys appearing for previous case.)  

 8 THE COURT:  Did you ever see the movie, 

 9 Fortune Cookie?  Oh, you've got to see it.  Walter Matthau -- 

10 And Mr. Cunningham, you know about that.

11 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  Yes.

12 THE COURT:  Walter Matthau and Jack Lemmon and

13 insurance surveillance, and all the rest.  Oh, it 's really a

14 kick.  It's in black and white.  It's old, but it 's still

15 funny.

16 (Laughter.)   

17 THE COURT:  You're laughing.

18 THE REPORTER:  It's good.  It was funny.  

19 THE COURT:  So he has cards -- we can go on the

20 record now.  

21 Mr. Bowser, the courtroom deputy, has cards from

22 everyone.  So we'll just leave it at this, that i f you are

23 going to say something on the record, then state your name so

24 the reporter can get down the correct attributes;  otherwise,

25 you are all accounted for, for your billable hour s, or whatever
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 1 you need that record for.

 2 Don't mean to sound jaded, but I am.

 3 (Laughter.)  

 4 THE COURT:  Okay, first of all, I don't understand

 5 why there is so much hoopla about an effort to am end the

 6 complaint, particularly when, as I understand it,  they are

 7 willing to remain under the preliminary injunctio n for that

 8 period of time.  And I assume that if they don't amend they

 9 could, in fact, file another dec relief action.  

10 So, you are going to respond to that?

11 MR. WILLIAMS:  Sure, Your Honor. 

12 THE COURT:  Yes.

13 MR. WILLIAMS:   Bart Williams on behalf of the

14 studio defendants and counter-claimants.

15 THE COURT:  Yes, good afternoon.

16 MR. WILLIAMS:  Thank you, Your Honor.  Good

17 afternoon.

18 The problem, from our perspective, is not so much

19 that they wish to amend their complaint; of cours e, they are

20 entitled to amend a complaint, pretty much, if th ey want to.

21 The problem is that they are trying to amend our motion.  Our

22 motion is part of the counter-claim, and our moti on is that --

23 to try to get a TRO and preliminary injunction fo r a particular

24 product.  That product has come to be known as th e Vegas

25 product.  We have been calling it RealDVD up unti l this time,
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 1 but, in discovery, we have learned that there are  two different

 2 products.  One product Real calls Facet, which is  a product

 3 that was developed first, before they appeared in  front of Your

 4 Honor on August 3rd -- on October 3rd and October  7th for those

 5 -- the hearings that we had before you.  Real did  not advise

 6 the Court; they did not advise us of the existenc e of the Facet

 7 product; they only were talking at that time abou t a product

 8 that they internally called the Vegas product, wh ich is the one

 9 that we have been litigating.

10 Over the course of time, for whatever reason,

11 RealNetworks decided that they wanted to have a d etermination

12 regarding the Facet product.  And what they are d oing,

13 effectively, by their motion to amend is requirin g that we, the

14 moving party, moving for the TRO on a particular piece of

15 technology, amend our motion.  And that is what w e don't want

16 to do, and here is the reason why we don't want t o do it:  The

17 information that we have been given on that produ ct is

18 extraordinarily limited.

19 THE COURT:  "That product" being Facet?

20 MR. WILLIAMS:  Being Facet, yes, Your Honor.

21 We have received precious little information

22 regarding the product.  And, most importantly, th e decision 

23 makers at our clients, the operations people at t he studios,

24 are prohibited from learning information about ho w the product

25 works.
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 1 THE COURT:  Well, but maybe -- maybe are you not

 2 getting the cart before the horse?  Because usual ly you would

 3 get discovery after the complaint is amended.  I mean, it's

 4 like you don't get, you know, preemptive discover y, so to

 5 speak, before somebody files a complaint.  And he re they want

 6 to move to amend the complaint, and you are argui ng that, well,

 7 we don't know enough about it to let them amend o r, I guess,

 8 get a modified TRO and to have take some action w ith respect to

 9 the TRO or preliminary injunction.  But that woul d not

10 ordinarily happen until the complaint is amended and you have

11 some further right of discovery.

12 MR. WILLIAMS:  Well, actually, Your Honor,

13 respectfully, it is not we who are putting the ca rt before the

14 horse because you have to have a controversy, you  have to have

15 a party that is seeking to get a temporary restra ining order,

16 that has a dispute with the party that is releasi ng the

17 technology.

18 THE COURT:  Well, they are seeking to get -- they

19 want dec relief action, is what they want.

20 MR. WILLIAMS:  Indeed, they do.  And we have

21 counter-claimed seeking the TRO.

22 THE COURT:  Right.

23 MR. WILLIAMS:  But the point is that in order to

24 have a case in controversy, for us to have a cont roversy with

25 them, we have to argue that that product should n ot be released
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 1 to the public.

 2 It's probable that we will argue that that produc t

 3 should not be released to the public, but we shou ld not have to

 4 take their word for it, we should be able to see the product --

 5 THE COURT:  If they are allowed to amend the

 6 complaint, and whatever we are calling it, the TR O -- I guess

 7 it's not a preliminary injunction yet -- the TRO remains in

 8 effect, and, after the complaint is amended, you either file

 9 your answer or whatever other action you are goin g to take, you

10 do some discovery.  

11 And perhaps the discovery will be -- it would hav e

12 to be more forthcoming; otherwise, they might end  up finding

13 that their newly amended complaint, insofar as it  relates to

14 Facet, is going to be dismissed, or that claim wo uld be

15 dismissed.  But they would have to allow some dis covery.  

16 And we'll hold tight on the temporary restraining

17 order and leave that in place as to the Vegas pro duct and allow

18 you to get whatever discovery you need as to the Facet product.

19 And then, if you need to move for a temporary res training order

20 on that, fine.  If not, then we'll deal with it a s a dec relief

21 action unless you move to dismiss that component of the claim

22 because you say there really is no controversy.

23 MR. WILLIAMS:  Your Honor, really, all we are asking

24 for is the opportunity to know the product as to which we are

25 seeking a temporary restraining order.
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 1 THE COURT:  Well, then, you would get that after

 2 they amend the complaint.

 3 MR. WILLIAMS:  Well, true, but what they are asking

 4 -- what they are saying and what the relief that they are

 5 seeking here is not just relief to permit them to  amend the

 6 complaint. They are seeking relief that has the C ourt ordering

 7 as of today, the time of their motion, that the F acet product

 8 will be heard for temporary restraining order in these same

 9 proceedings, as to which the Vegas product has be en heard.

10 And that's what we object to because our clients

11 should be entitled to make a decision, one way or  the other,

12 about whether they want to even move on the Facet  product.  And

13 that is the -- that's the putting the cart before  the horse.

14 Typically, we would have seen the product out on the

15 market, we would have then moved, and that hasn't  happened

16 here.  They have been very careful and cagey abou t allowing us

17 to have information regarding the Facet product.

18 THE COURT:  Cagey a lot over here; is that it?

19 (Laughter.)  

20 MR. WILLIAMS:  In fact -- 

21 THE COURT:  I think we can take care of caginess.

22 It wouldn't be the first time we've had to deal w ith that.

23 But, we can either keep -- try to keep the TRO on

24 the track and then plug the other product into it  while you are

25 doing discovery.  With the battery of lawyers you  have, you
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 1 ought to the be able to, you know, do discovery o n more than

 2 one product, it would seem to me.

 3 MR. WILLIAMS:  That's really -- I'm sorry to cut you

 4 off.

 5 THE COURT:  And so, I'm inclined to allow the motion

 6 to amend and then keep the TRO in place.  And you  tell me when

 7 you are going to be ready to deal with the Facet product and

 8 whether it's a good idea to keep it on the same t rack as

 9 Vista -- 

10 MR. WILLIAMS:  Vegas.

11 THE COURT:  Vegas, excuse me.  That's -- 

12 (Laughter.)  

13 THE COURT:  -- someone else's product.  That's

14 Microsoft, isn't it?  

15 No, the Vegas product.  And we can figure out a

16 schedule for that.  But they are going to have to  provide

17 enough disclosure for you to determine whether or  not there is

18 any potential basis for a preliminary injunction or a TRO.  

19 MR. WILLIAMS:  I see, Your Honor.  So you are

20 suggesting two steps:  One, they amend.  We get a  chance to

21 look at some information to determine whether or not our

22 clients will object or not.

23 THE COURT:  Yes.

24 MR. WILLIAMS:  One thing that we would request,

25 though, as it currently exists, all of the docume nts have been
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 1 designated "highly confidential" by Real.

 2 THE COURT:  We'll get to that question.

 3 MR. WILLIAMS:  Okay.

 4 THE COURT:  Okay.

 5 I'm going to grant, then, the motion to amend.

 6 Now, we have a proposed amended complaint; is tha t

 7 the one that should be lodged, then, and defendan ts should

 8 respond to?

 9 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  Yes, Your Honor.

10 THE COURT:  And does it -- I mean, I didn't do a

11 side-by-side, but does it really differ in any re spect with

12 regard to the Vegas aspect of the complaint?

13 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  I'm Leo Cunningham.  

14 And no, it doesn't, Your Honor.  I did do a

15 side-by-side last night, and it really only adds this language

16 about the new platform, which is what is also cal led Facet.

17 THE COURT:  Um-hmm, okay.

18 And so do we deem that filed as of today because

19 everybody has a copy of it, right?

20 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  Yes.

21 MR. WILLIAMS:  Yes, we do, Your Honor.

22 THE COURT:  Is that correct?

23 And then how long do you need to file an answer, or

24 whatever else -- I think the best thing is to fil e an answer,

25 and that is without prejudice to any kind of a mo tion, either
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 1 to dismiss or for summary judgment, if you believ e that, in

 2 fact, there isn't a basis for any kind of declara tory relief or

 3 injunctive relief on your part, okay?  Can we do that?

 4 MR. WILLIAMS:  I hate to be persistent, Your Honor.

 5 THE COURT:  Um-hmm.

 6 MR. WILLIAMS:  We'd be happy to do that so long as

 7 the operations people that are clients, the ones who have to

 8 decide whether or not to oppose, can be permitted  access to

 9 these descriptions of the product, the source cod e for the

10 product -- 

11 THE COURT:  And we're going to get to that.

12 MR. WILLIAMS:  Okay.  As long as that happens -- 

13 THE COURT:  Fine.

14 How long to answer?

15 MR. WILLIAMS:  Twenty days.

16 THE COURT:  Twenty days?  Twenty days to answer.

17 And then what should we do with respect to the

18 motion for preliminary injunction?

19 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  Your Honor, we have a view on that.

20 So we are clear, there has been discovery about t he

21 new product, the Facet product.  There were two d ays of

22 depositions on it just this past -- now last week .  We provided

23 the source code in mid-November.  We provided tec hnical

24 documents beginning in mid-November.  So there ha s been,

25 actually, a substantial amount of discovery on th e product.
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 1 Our concern is that the current preliminary

 2 injunction motion seeks relief that would cover t he new

 3 product, so we want to make sure that we get to h ave a fair

 4 fight about the new product at the preliminary in junction

 5 hearing.  And we appreciate that if time -- more time really is

 6 needed to do that, we'll grudgingly accede to tha t.

 7 We are under a TRO, and that is not a comfortable

 8 place to be, but we would like to hold the schedu le -- in light

 9 of the fact that we gave discovery on Facet, we " would like to

10 try to hold the end of January schedule to have F acet and

11 RealDVD or Vegas heard at the same time.

12 THE COURT:  And does that depend upon how quickly

13 you get access to whatever it is you believe you have not had

14 access to already?

15 MR. WILLIAMS:  Well, indeed, Your Honor.

16 And, if I may, on the topic of the fair fight I h ave

17 a couple of comments.  The first is that it is tr ue that they

18 gave us a bunch of source code, but it's also tru e that they

19 gave us five million lines of source code relatin g to the Facet

20 product.

21 THE COURT:  Be careful what you wish for.

22 MR. WILLIAMS:  Exactly.  That was contained in

23 33,000 independent files.  

24 Point number two is that, yes, it is true that we

25 took depositions of the two people principally re sponsible for
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 1 developing the Facet product, Mr. Brennan and Mr.  Barrett, but

 2 it is also true that the documents that Counsel i s referring to

 3 that purportedly describe the product, when we pl aced these

 4 documents in front of those witnesses they said, no, no, those

 5 aren't the documents that are the current version s of the

 6 descriptions of the Facet product.

 7 The very documents that are referenced in Ms. Lan e's

 8 declaration before Your Honor, for today's purpos es, or the

 9 opposition to -- the reply brief on the motion to  amend, it

10 details these documents that we were supposedly g iven, and when

11 we asked those witnesses, who are supposed to kno w about them,

12 we were told that these are not the current versi ons of the

13 documents.  So, as it stands right now, we don't have the

14 document that purportedly describe the document - - or let me

15 rephrase.  We were not given until last -- 

16 MR. SINGLA:  Friday morning.

17 MR. WILLIAMS:  -- Friday morning what's called a

18 WIKI, which is the internal working document, liv ing document

19 inside Real that describes their work on the prod uct.  We've

20 been asking for that for some time; we got it on Friday.  So

21 the documents that supposedly demonstrate that we  have had

22 these materials for a long time aren't the ones t hat actually

23 describe the product.

24 It is our view that it is, in fact, Real's

25 intention, and has been for quite some time, to p rotract the
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 1 proceedings, to stretch them out.  We don't know why, frankly,

 2 but we were prepared to -- 

 3 THE COURT:  Well, it would seem to me that they are

 4 the ones who have a product they want to get to m arket -- 

 5 MR. WILLIAMS:  Right.

 6 THE COURT:  So it's to their disadvantage.  

 7 I mean, you don't want them out there with this

 8 product, right?

 9 MR. WILLIAMS:  Oh, that's absolutely right.  

10 THE COURT:  So, it seems to me as long as they are

11 willing to leave the TRO in place, it's to their disadvantage

12 if they think they have a legitimate basis for ge tting that

13 product out to market.

14 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  I wish I were as clever or cagey as

15 is being ascribed.  We don't want delay for any r eason.  We do

16 want to get our RealDVD product out and out from under the TRO.

17 And our new product is a product under developmen t; it is not

18 ready to go yet.

19 THE COURT:  Well, you anticipated my question, was

20 that is this a work in progress?

21 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  Absolutely.  And that's why -- 

22 THE COURT:  Is this why, you know, these various

23 plans are changing the source code is changing, a nd so forth?

24 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  The answer is yes.  And that is

25 what a WIKI is, it's a constantly update -- like Wikipedia,
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 1 like it's a constantly updatable living document.   So, at any

 2 given moment, the document we gave yesterday is l ikely to then

 3 become out of date.  So that is why our witnesses  would

 4 truthfully answer there could be more current ver sions of the

 5 document.

 6 So there is no dispute, the core functionality of

 7 this device is that it is going to do what the Re alDVD product

 8 did.  So, I mean, there is no question that it's teed up, and

 9 it's teed up for resolution at the preliminary in junction

10 hearing.  

11 And, because the studios are seeking relief that

12 would extend to the RealDVD product or anything w ith similar

13 functionality, it would plainly cover this new pr oduct, and

14 they well know that.

15 MR. WILLIAMS:  Your Honor -- 

16 THE COURT:  Hold on just one moment.

17 Is there anything that is likely to happen in the

18 evolution of this product that would take it out of the realm

19 of what the studios are trying to get a TRO for o r preliminary

20 injunction for?

21 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  Yes.  The answer is no.  I mean,

22 the core of this product is what it is, a hardwar e device that

23 allows the consumer to save the DVD onto a hard d rive, this

24 time in a stand-alone box, not on a PC, and then retrieve it

25 from the hard drive and watch it without having t o use the DVD
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 1 again.  That is immutable.  That is the fundament al

 2 characteristic of the product.

 3 THE COURT:  Yes.

 4 MR. WILLIAMS:  I just want to be clear:  We would

 5 not take the position that the Facet product fall s under the

 6 ambit of the Court's order that you've already is sued unless

 7 it's fully litigated properly where we know what the product

 8 is.  So we would not take that position, we do re cognize that

 9 that would be unreasonable.

10 THE COURT:  But what I understand Mr. Cunningham is

11 saying is that at least now the way that the TRO is crafted,

12 and perhaps what you are seeking, you know, for t he preliminary

13 injunction, is broad enough that it would, in fac t, cover this,

14 albeit not naming the product itself.

15 MR. WILLIAMS:  I think that's right.  But then

16 issue, would -- if it played out the way we think  would be

17 appropriate, if and when the product is released,  then our

18 client would have the opportunity to move on that  and say that

19 it either does or does not fall under the order.

20 THE COURT:  Well, how long would it take, given

21 whatever else you think you need, and given the f act that this

22 iteration is going to be reiterated and reiterate d and

23 reiterated, perhaps, but I don't know how long th ey anticipate

24 for this to be a work in progress, but, I think M r. Cunningham

25 is suggesting that the way that it operates is kn own now and is
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 1 not going to change.  To change that in any respe ct, I guess,

 2 it's just maybe some fine-tuning that's going on,  so,

 3 therefore, maybe you ought to be able, with some reasonable

 4 period of time, to address that in your, you know , preliminary

 5 injunction as well.

 6 MR. WILLIAMS:  It's obviously very hard to say, Your

 7 Honor.  That may be true, and it may not be true.   We are not

 8 in a position now to know.  And moreover, again, the decision

 9 makers aren't in a position to make a decision on  behalf of our

10 clients about whether they would want to fight Fa cet or not.

11 But I would agree with you, that, yes, if we get

12 enough information to make that decision, we ough t to be able

13 to do that.

14 THE COURT:  Well, if what Mr. Cunningham is saying

15 is correct, that this new product is essentially like Vegas,

16 and for the record, I think when you are referrin g to the

17 RealDVD, is that correct, you are talking about V egas, right?

18 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  Yes.

19 THE COURT:  So that it's clear.  So when we are

20 talking about Vegas, that it operates like Vegas,  it's just a

21 stand-alone.  If that is, in fact, correct, you c ertainly would

22 want to do something about that as well, right?  

23 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  Yes, Your Honor.

24 MR. SINGLA:  Your Honor, if I could make one

25 comment -- 
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 1 THE COURT:  -- with your name on the record.

 2 MR. SINGLA:  I'm sorry.

 3 This is Rohit Singla for the studios.  My apologi es,

 4 Your Honor.

 5 The witnesses that we deposed this past week made

 6 very clear that the source code and the developme nt of this

 7 Facet project are completely separate from the Ve gas project.

 8 So, I think part of what Mr. Williams is saying, part of our

 9 concern is that to sit down now and start analyzi ng the Facet

10 project -- product would take some time.

11 It's not like Mr. Cunningham is suggesting that i t's

12 the same functionality.  That might be, we don't know, perhaps

13 that's true.  But for us to analyze it, we're sta rting, really,

14 from ground zero, essentially, because it's an en tirely

15 different set of source code developed by differe nt people with

16 no communications, essentially, with the people w ho developed

17 Vegas.

18 So, when we are talking about having a preliminar y

19 injunction hearing to cover both products, it may  take us, very

20 frankly, some significant amount of time, a matte r of months,

21 to get up to speed on the Facet project, learn ab out it.  We

22 don't even have a prototype of it; they apparentl y do have 20

23 prototypes sitting there in Seattle.  We don't ha ve one.  We

24 didn't get any technical specifications of it unt il this past

25 Friday.

Sahar McVickar, C.S.R. No. 12963, RPR
Official Court Reporter, U.S. District Court

(415) 626-6060

Case3:08-cv-04548-MHP   Document466    Filed09/16/09   Page18 of 82



    19

 1 So, I think what we have been thinking is that we

 2 could go forward with the hearing on Real DVD at the end of

 3 January, and then we would agree that it would no t cover the

 4 Facet product, we would agree to that.  And we co uld then

 5 proceed to deal with the Facet product.

 6 It may be that the Court's rules on the Vegas

 7 product would inform the parties enough that we c ould come to

 8 some resolution on the Facet product.  If not, th en after

 9 dealing with the Vegas product at the end of Janu ary we could

10 deal with Facet, at some point down the road.  Bu t, if we're

11 going to deal with them on a consolidated basis, there is going

12 to be some significant delay.

13 THE COURT:  How long did it take to get up to speed

14 on the Vegas product?

15 MR. SINGLA:  We got the source code in the middle of

16 November.  We got technical documents about the s ame time,

17 November 13th, and I would say we would be up to speed by the

18 hearing at the end of January.

19 THE COURT:  But your papers are due before that.

20 MR. SINGLA:  The papers are due before that, that's

21 correct, by mid-January.  So let's saying say som ething like

22 six weeks to two months.

23 MR. WILLIAMS:  Two -- yeah.

24 MR. SINGLA:  Something like that, Your Honor.

25 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  Your Honor, we gave the source code
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 1 and technical documents regarding the new product  at about the

 2 same time.  So, while I appreciate that they need  some time

 3 with Facet, they have already had some, and that should be

 4 considered.  Because we are under a TRO, admitted ly only on the

 5 first product, but we would have to be Captain Co urageous to

 6 take a product with such similar functionality ou t, even if it

 7 isn't technically within the scope of the TRO.

 8 So, really, it puts us in an impractical and

 9 incredibly difficult position.  And, since there' s yet another

10 issue lurking in this hearing, where we are now t alking about

11 bifurcating the hearing, Vegas versus Facet.  And  there is this

12 issue relating to ArccOS and some other stuff we will get to

13 later.  I think that we are going to drive the Co urt somewhat

14 insane by forcing -- 

15 THE COURT:  No more so than -- 

16 (Laughter.)  

17 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  We are going to be causing the

18 Court do an interpretation of the license, first in one

19 context, then in a very similar but slightly diff erent context.

20 And then -- that's not the right way to do it.  I  mean, it

21 really makes sense for us to get Facet into this hearing and

22 let's look at the license and compare it to these  technologies

23 once and for all.

24 THE COURT:  Well, would the application of the

25 license look any different in connection with Fac et?
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 1 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  I believe that there are some --

 2 some differences in the application of the licens e, given the

 3 arguments that the studios have made, about how i f you are in a

 4 PC environment, a personal computer environment, the contract

 5 applies in a particular way.  This, the new produ ct, is a

 6 stand-alone, non-PC product.  So there may be som e differences.

 7 THE COURT:  And is there any reason why, other than

 8 what you've said about essentially visiting some of the issues

 9 twice, which, of course, no judge wants to do, if  we can avoid

10 it, is there any reason why an injunction could n ot be framed

11 and limited to Vegas, and, you know, if one has t o put an "and"

12 there and whatever would be related to Vegas, but  confining it

13 to that so that it doesn't spill over into Facet until such

14 time as Facet -- we can address Facet?

15 (Counsel confer.)  

16 THE COURT:  Is this where the caginess comes in?

17 (Laughter.)  

18 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  It's back to what Mr. Berta was

19 whispering in my ear, was reminding me of the rea lities that

20 this is a hardware product that has a manufacturi ng

21 requirement, and therefore there is a lead time.  You have to

22 release the product to manufacturing, and then it  has to be

23 manufactured and debugged, and that kind of stuff , and away we

24 go.  And I'm quickly in over my head with respect  to the

25 manufacturing process, which is as a practical pr oblem, I mean,
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 1 we could be some of the best scribners around, if  we are

 2 enjoined on RealDVD, it's inconceivable how we co uld risk

 3 making the investment in Facet.  And we should be  able to

 4 defend Facet at the same time we are defending Re al DVD.

 5 MR. WILLIAMS:  If I may, Your Honor?

 6 THE COURT:  Yes.

 7 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  I'm sorry.  I didn't mean to cut

 8 off Counsel.

 9 MR. WILLIAMS:  That is of RealNetworks' own

10 choosing.  They were working on the Facet project  well before

11 the Vegas project.  They chose not to advise eith er the studios

12 or the Court of the existence of the Facet produc t in October

13 when we appeared before Your Honor.  So, to the e xtent that the

14 what Mr. Cunningham is describing about lead time s and

15 manufacturing is the case, it is RealNetworks tha t made that

16 decision at the time that they chose only to rais e the issue of

17 the Vegas product in front of the Court.

18 That is a critical point, that it's only after th e

19 TRO was entered against them that they suddenly h ave decided to

20 try to insert the Facet product, which they knew all along was

21 being worked upon by them and in the mix.  

22 MR. SINGLA:  Can I -- 

23 THE COURT:  Now, Mr. Cunningham has also said, if I

24 understand correctly, that you've had the source code for Facet

25 about as long as you've had the source code for V egas; is that
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 1 correct?

 2 MR. SINGLA:  It is in a manner of speaking, Your

 3 Honor.

 4 THE COURT:  Except that it changes.

 5 MR. SINGLA:  I don't think the issue is so much

 6 changing.  That may be, I don't know about that.  And I have

 7 experts of the testimony, if the Court would like  to see actual

 8 testimony about these issues from RealDVD's -- I mean,

 9 RealNetworks' witnesses, is that the source code we were given,

10 for example, for the RealDVD, the Vegas product, in November

11 was 9 million lines of source code; that is a mon umental amount

12 of source code.  And we asked RealNetworks repeat edly to please

13 tell us what in there is actually for Vegas, and they refused

14 for weeks.

15 Finally, after our people spent a week or more

16 trying to find the actual code for Vegas, we fina lly found the

17 less than a million lines of source code, which i s a reasonable

18 amount, that has to do with Vegas.

19 So, when they say they have provided source code,  in

20 a manner of speaking, but they provided it in a w ay that made

21 it impossible for us to actually find and analyze  the relevant

22 code.

23 With Facet, however -- 

24 THE COURT:  So some of that source code that you got

25 in that nine million is Facet?
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 1 MR. SINGLA:  No, Your Honor.  The nine million is

 2 one set we were given.  Out of the nine million, about a

 3 million of it, the witnesses from RealNetworks te stified, was

 4 actually about Real DVD, a very small portion tha t was easily

 5 identified by RealNetworks, but very hard for our  people to

 6 analyze and identify.

 7 Separately, we were also given five million lines  of

 8 source code for Facet.  And the lead developer fo r Facet, who I

 9 deposed Wednesday of the last week -- Tuesday, ex cuse me, of

10 last week, testified that less than a million lin es out of the

11 five million are actually for the Facet product.  And we don't

12 know what those less than a million lines are.  T o this day I

13 don't know.  So if my people start, our experts s tart our

14 consultants analyzing the Facet code, until we fi nd out what is

15 the actual part that relates to the Facet product , it's very

16 difficult to get started.  They could tell us, or  we could have

17 our people spend another week or ten days trying to dig it,

18 figure it out and dig through it.

19 So, I guess when they say the source code was

20 provided, it was, in a manner of speaking, but no t in a way

21 that could be quickly or efficiently analyzed by our

22 consultants.

23 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  If I may, this may be taking us

24 away from where we need to be, but when -- I thin k he is

25 referring to when an engineer named Brennan was d eposed,
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 1 Mr. Singla could well have asked him where in the  code they

 2 should be looking, and he didn't.

 3 We didn't volunteer to make people available for

 4 chats about the source code because we are in a s tructured

 5 litigation context where we knew there would be d epositions on

 6 the subject and fully expected that if there were  those kinds

 7 of questions, they would be obtained from our wit nesses with

 8 the formality of a deposition.

 9 THE COURT:  God forbid you should be the least bit

10 helpful at all to move the process along.

11 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  Well, there is not a ton of

12 Christmas cheer going around in this case at the moment, but we

13 were not trying to be obstructionist or obstreper ous.  And, in

14 fact, we have, on an earlier occasion, when there  had been this

15 complaint that it was hard to find things in the code, we had

16 suggested a 30(b)(6) on that, and that offer appa rently wasn't

17 accepted.

18 MR. SINGLA:  Well, Your Honor, on the 30 (b (6)

19 notice, I'm a little -- I mean, I don't want to g o back and

20 forth of tit-for-tat issues -- 

21 THE COURT:  And I don't want to spend any time with

22 that.

23 MR. SINGLA:  But I will say that we did request a

24 30(b)(6), and we were told that a 30(b)(6) witnes s would not be

25 made available until last week.  So we were in th is position of
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 1 having -- 

 2 THE COURT:  Well, are there more depositions that

 3 need to be taken with respect to Facet?  

 4 MR. SINGLA:  With respect to Facet, we have not sat

 5 down and really thought about that.  But, my init ial

 6 inclination would be, for example, the deposition  I took this

 7 past week of their witnesses they would like to b ring at the

 8 end of January.  Those were Facet people, two peo ple.

 9 Now, the problem is that I brought documents that

10 they had told us were the relevant documents, tec hnical

11 specifications.  The witness said, and again, I h ave the

12 testimony here, as Mr. Williams explained, the wi tness said oh,

13 no, those are six months out of date; those are t otally not

14 accurate.  I didn't get the supposedly accurate i nformation

15 until Friday morning, so I think we may need to g o back and

16 depose one or two of those people again now that we have the

17 actual correct information.  But we didn't have t hat until

18 Friday morning.

19 THE COURT:  What are the issues that the Court would

20 have to -- should hear, really, only once?  I mea n, even though

21 we have two different kinds of systems, I suppose , if I can

22 call them that, there are, certainly, some common  issues.  What

23 are the common issues?  Do they have to do with t he license?

24 Do they -- or licenses, perhaps, is the word?  Do  they have to

25 do with, I guess the expert testimony would be te stimony that
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 1 is more specific to -- to each product, but what is there that

 2 would be common?

 3 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  Your Honor, there is a license that

 4 applies to this technology in both its forms.

 5 THE COURT:  Um-hmm.

 6 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  And Your Honor is going to have to

 7 wrestle the license to the ground applying it to the

 8 technologies.

 9 THE COURT:  That bad a license, huh? 

10 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  Yeah.  So, the whole contract

11 interpretation thing is going to be common to bot h and much of

12 the Court's effort.

13 THE COURT:  And then what else?  Anything else?

14 MR. WILLIAMS:  Well, Your Honor, I would argue that,

15 of course, we don't know whether the Facet produc t has some of

16 the same features, but one of the issues that is before the

17 Court today has to do with other features contain ed on the

18 Vegas product that we argue defeat copy control m easures.  And

19 the terms that are applied to those are the ArccO S measures, I

20 believe it's A-R-c-c-O-S, and RipGuard features.  Those are

21 features that were developed by Sony for ArccOS a nd Macrovision

22 for RipGuard.  They are features that apparently are contained

23 on the Vegas product.  They don't have anything t o do,

24 actually, with the license, but they are copy con trol measures

25 which our evidence that we have developed over th e course of
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 1 the discovery has indicated are defeated by the V egas product.

 2 So that's one issue.  I don't know whether or not  that issue

 3 relates to the -- 

 4 THE COURT:  Is that issue implicated with Facet as

 5 well?  

 6 One of your co-counsel is shaking his head in the

 7 affirmative.

 8 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  Okay, so I agree with whoever it

 9 is.  The answer is yes, Your Honor.

10 So now we are changing topics here to discuss how  we

11 are going to deal with what is something that is very new and

12 very surprising and has us at quite a disadvantag e now, which

13 is we thought the preliminary injunction hearing was going to

14 be about the CSS technology, which is what the TR O hearing was

15 about and whether we have circumvented the CSS te chnology -- 

16 THE COURT:  Well, you see where I'm going with this:

17 What I would like to do is, to the extent that we  have to take

18 testimony at this preliminary injunction hearing,  I'd like to

19 stage it in such a way that we can take testimony  that would

20 be -- or evidence that would be common to both of  these

21 products and then take the evidence with respect to the Vegas.  

22 And meanwhile, some of your, you know, since you

23 have -- I mean, how many lawyers do you have at y our respective

24 disposal?  Some of the other lawyers can be worki ng on getting

25 up to speed on Facet so that shortly thereafter - - this is
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 1 going to be a bench hearing, it's not like we to have bring in

 2 a jury and bring them back a few weeks later -- a nd, as soon as

 3 possible thereafter, then move to the Facet.  By that time, you

 4 will have got what you need on the Facet product.

 5 Can we do something like that?  I mean, you know,  we

 6 are not going to forget who happened at stage one .  We can then

 7 move to stage two when everybody is ready.

 8 And, I can assure you that if we don't get to sta ge

 9 two in Facet that any injunction is going to be, if granted, is

10 going to be limited, and you can help me frame th e language, to

11 the Vegas product and hold off on anything relate d to or that

12 would be suggested as including Facet until we've  got the

13 evidence with respect to that.  

14 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  Let me speak to the ArccOS/RipGuard

15 issue because it really is important to us. And w e're now --

16 THE COURT:  It is important.

17 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  It is very important to us because

18 we are talking now about, really, there are three  ways to cut

19 this.

20 We had suggested that we do Vegas and RealDVD and

21 the new product in one hearing relating to CSS, a nd then the

22 bifurcation be of this new technology we have jus t heard is an

23 issue in the case, which is ArccOS and RipGuard.  That is, of

24 course, not our product, that is copy protection technology.

25 We are given to understand that they are now cont aining -- our
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 1 product, both of them, would circumvent.

 2 We know nearly nothing about those two copy

 3 protection systems.  We didn't know they were an issue in this

 4 case until an interrogatory answer on December 8t h.  We don't

 5 know how they work.  We don't know how, if, they relate to the

 6 CSS.

 7 THE COURT:  While their lawyers are getting up to

 8 speed on Facet, you know, you are not hurting for  lawyers at

 9 Wilson Sonsini, either, right?  So, you can get u p to speed on

10 ArccOS and -- what is it called, RipGuard?

11 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  RipGuard.

12 THE COURT:  Right?

13 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  And there may be others that we

14 haven't heard about.  

15 THE COURT:  Well, we need to do something about

16 making sure we hear about everything that needs t o be heard

17 about -- 

18 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  I agree.

19 THE COURT:  -- as soon as possible. So, is there

20 some way of doing that?  Do you know how to fashi on -- I mean,

21 why don't we have an interchange now?  Are there any other, I

22 don't know what you call them, products, devices or methods,

23 whatever, that -- of the ArccOS/RipGuard nature t hat are going

24 to be implicated here, or have we heard about all  of them?

25 MR. WILLIAMS:  Your Honor, those are the ones that
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 1 we know about at this time.

 2 And I do want to make clear, it's not as though t he

 3 defendant companies are the ones who developed --  

 4 THE COURT:  I'm not here to assign blame, okay?

 5 MR. WILLIAMS:  Understood.

 6 THE COURT:  I want to get things resolved.

 7 MR. WILLIAMS:  Right.

 8 THE COURT:  So, don't worry about that business.  If

 9 somebody is pointing a finger, you don't have to point it back

10 or deflect it, you know, let's just get a way to solve it.

11 MR. WILLIAMS:  Very well, Your Honor.  

12 The only ones that we know of at this point in

13 addition to CSS, the copy control protections tha t I am aware

14 of are ArccOS and RipGuard.

15 THE COURT:  Um-hmm. Well -- 

16 MR. STEER:  Your Honor, may I interject? 

17 THE COURT:  Yes, yes.

18 MR. STEER:  I'm Reginald Steer on behalf of the DVD

19 Copy Control Association.

20 The way this conversation has gone, it raises a

21 number of issues in my mind.  First and foremost is that,

22 initially, we thought that expert disclosures wou ld have been

23 completed by now. They haven't been; they are yet  to be done.

24 And, of course, there have been no depositions of  experts.

25 And, in any event, I don't see how experts could have been
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 1 prepared on the new platform -- I'll use that, ra ther than the

 2 catch word for it -- in the time that's been avai lable.

 3 And I also believe that it doesn't serve either t he

 4 parties or the Court very well to push this sched ule so that we

 5 are going forward, in my view, somewhat half-bake d on how this

 6 new product works.

 7 We don't know -- 

 8 THE COURT:  You know, whose side are you on here?

 9 MR. STEER:  Whose side I'm on?

10 THE COURT:  Yeah.  I thought you were with the

11 studios on this.

12 MR. STEER:  Certainly, we are on the same side as

13 the studios, but the issue as it's developing, Yo ur Honor, is

14 one, in my mind, that raises concerns about wheth er the parties

15 can present the kind of helpful evidentiary basis  that the

16 Court will need.

17 So, as long as the restraining order that is in

18 effect, remains in effect, I personally, on behal f of DVD CCA,

19 believe that we need a little bit more time to fi gure out how

20 this new product works, and how it works in light  -- in

21 relation to the requirements of the CSS license a greement.

22 THE COURT:  By the "new product," you are referring

23 to Facet?

24 MR. STEER:  That's correct, what they call the new

25 platform and I call Facet.
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 1 THE COURT:  But that would give -- if we proceed,

 2 essentially, on the Vegas, but, taking common iss ues, you know,

 3 at the same time, to the extent that there are co mmon issue,

 4 then allowing discovery to go on with respect to Facet and then

 5 plugging that in a little bit later down road, I mean, that

 6 might be a gap in time, but -- 

 7 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  May I -- 

 8 THE COURT:  -- certainly, we can organize it in such

 9 a fashion or stage it in such a fashion to accomp lish that.

10 Yes?

11 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  We are under the TRO, and we would

12 like to move expeditiously, but we are not arguin g that -- if

13 people need time so we have a fair litigation, so  be it.  We

14 understand that.

15 THE COURT:  Um-hmm.

16 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  I would recommend that we keep

17 Vegas and Facet together, and if we have to bump that some

18 reasonably short period of time -- 

19 THE COURT:  That takes us right back where we were

20 and the arguments on the other side.

21 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  And then we do ArccOS and RipGuard,

22 which are much farther behind on the discovery.  Because,

23 truly, we have nothing on those topics, and we ha ve to go to

24 third parties to get them.

25 THE COURT:  Does that mean that third parties are
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 1 going to end up in this lawsuit?

 2 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  I don't expect, but I obviously

 3 don't know.  Conceivably.  I mean, I don't know.

 4 THE COURT:  We'll find that out fairly soon, as

 5 well, if third parties are going to have to be ad ded.

 6 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  We would not be adding them.  I

 7 can't foresee that.

 8 THE COURT:  What do you think?  

 9 MR. WILLIAMS:  We believe, actually, Your Honor, I

10 think that -- and I haven't had a chance, and I w ould

11 appreciate a moment to speak with the lawyers rep resenting the

12 MPAA, but I -- I, if I'm hearing the Court correc tly, would

13 agree, that your suggestion would be the best, wh ich is to go

14 forward, consolidating as many issues as possible  on the Vegas

15 product.  To the extent there is additional disco very that has

16 to take place concerning Facet, that would go on at the same

17 time.

18 Where I would differ from Mr. Cunningham is on th e

19 notion of ArccOS and RipGuard.  Those aren't diff erent products

20 put out by Real, it's the same product put out by  Real, it just

21 has other features that defeat other copy control  protections.

22 It should be dealt with in this hearing.

23 THE COURT:  Are each of those involved with both

24 products or -- 

25 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  Yes.

Sahar McVickar, C.S.R. No. 12963, RPR
Official Court Reporter, U.S. District Court

(415) 626-6060

Case3:08-cv-04548-MHP   Document466    Filed09/16/09   Page34 of 82



    35

 1 THE COURT:  They are?

 2 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  Yes.

 3 THE COURT:  So, they are common to both.

 4 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  Yes.

 5 THE COURT:  Um-hmm.

 6 MR. WILLIAMS:  So -- 

 7 THE COURT:  But is there third-party discovery that

 8 is going to be needed as to those?  

 9 MR. SINGLA:  We don't believe so, Your Honor.  

10 You know, the way the situation arose is that,

11 actually, RealNetworks has been aware of the docu ments that we

12 received in the last few weeks and the witnesses we have

13 deposed.  They have been aware of ArccOS and RipG uard for the

14 better part of a year, maybe more than a year.  I t's we who are

15 only recently learning that their products, Vegas  and Facet,

16 both, are designed to circumvent these other kind s of copy

17 protections.

18 You know, they have documents about ArccOS and

19 RipGuard.  That is all over their e-mails and the ir

20 specifications.  Their technical witnesses testif ied about it.

21 Mr. Buzzard, who is the lead developer for Vegas,  testified he

22 knows about ArccOS and RipGuard.  So, it's not as  if we have

23 been withholding any information on this subject.   These are

24 not our technologies.

25 THE COURT:  Well, and your affiliate over here,
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 1 whatever you want to call him, he wants to see a little longer

 2 time frame.  He doesn't think you are all going t o be ready, I

 3 gather, by the end of whatever the date is when y our papers

 4 need to be filed, the middle of January and the h earing date

 5 that is scheduled.

 6 MR. SINGLA:  I believe -- I may be wrong, but I

 7 believe Mr. Steer was talking about not being rea dy on Facet.

 8 I don't believe -- 

 9 THE COURT:  Is that correct?  

10 MR. STEER:  That's correct.  

11 MR. SINGLA:  I don't believe there is any question

12 about being ready on Vegas.

13 THE COURT:  Oh, is that correct?  I misunderstood

14 you then; I apologize.

15 Well, listen, it's 3:30:  There are other attorne ys

16 here who are going to be far briefer than you are  going to be,

17 at least I hope they are going to be brief.  I th ink you

18 understand what I want, and, you know, understand  your

19 concerns, and so forth.  But, I think if we can d o something on

20 along the lines of what I suggested, we can get w here we need

21 to go, relatively soon, without pushing everybody  out of shape

22 about it, as well, and -- but getting it done.

23 So -- and then I guess we had a couple of other

24 issues that need to be sorted out.  So, what I th ink would be a

25 good idea is if you can all repair to the lawyer' s lounge and
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 1 come up with a schedule for all of this that will  work for

 2 everybody, okay?  And that means make some conces sions.  And

 3 that means to be cooperative, sometimes.  Let's f ight this case

 4 on the merits and not, you know -- and that goes for all of

 5 you:  Let's fight it on the merits and not play a round with,

 6 you know, guess which source code this belongs to .  I mean, you

 7 know, this is not Real Games, now, okay?  This is  not even fake

 8 games.  Let's just get that done and come back he re in a little

 9 while with a schedule.

10 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  Would it be possible to get some

11 sense of the Court's availability in February?

12 THE COURT:  I'm going to generally be here.

13 (Laughter.)  

14 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  Okay.

15 THE COURT:  I don't know, maybe I'll get an

16 invitation I can't refuse, but -- 

17 (Laughter.)  

18 THE COURT:  Until then, I'm going to generally be

19 here, okay?  

20 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  Okay.  Thank you.

21 THE COURT:  So, figure out some dates.

22 I mean, I don't know what you mean by that questi on.

23 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  I just wondered if you were going

24 on vacation.  That's all I was asking, Your Honor .  

25 MR. WILLIAMS:  Your Honor, may I just try to find
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 1 out:  Are you suggesting that we go get dates bas ed upon the

 2 framework that you've described -- 

 3 THE COURT:  Yes. Yes. Yes, I am.

 4 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  One -- 

 5 THE COURT:  Having come to that idea, I'm wed to it.

 6 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  And, because I think I would like

 7 to discuss with our colleagues whether or not, ju st taking the

 8 whole hearing, forgetting any bifurcation or trif urcation and

 9 just doing it all at once.

10 THE COURT:  Well, you can talk with them about it.

11 But, I don't want to see a stalemate back here.  You come back

12 here with dates.

13 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  Okay.

14 THE COURT:  Okay, that you can all live with.

15 And you can leave your things on the tables becau se

16 nobody is going to need the tables.  We just have  the case

17 management conferences.  So, you can leave behind  whatever you

18 want to.

19 Don't worry about the source code, I can't read i t,

20 anyway.

21 MR. SINGLA:  Your Honor, what time should we plan to

22 come back?  4:30?

23 THE COURT:  4:00, 4:15 at the latest.

24 MR. SINGLA:  Thank you, Your Honor.

25 THE COURT:  You know the lawyer's lounge, right on
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 1 this floor.  

 2 MR. WILLIAMS:  Yes.

 3 THE COURT:  Thank you.

 4 (Proceedings recess for meet and confer; 

 5 proceedings resumed at 4:35 p.m.:)  

 6 THE CLERK:  Recalling civil 08-4548, civil 08-4719,

 7 RealNetworks, Inc., versus DVD Copy Control.

 8 THE COURT:  Okay, we don't need to have them restate

 9 their appearances if they were already speaking?  You know who

10 they are?

11 Did we work out a schedule, a work plan?

12 MR. WILLIAMS:  Well, we worked out what -- there is

13 agreement as to what each party wants from the ot her, but there

14 not an agreement with respect to the schedule.  W e made a

15 proposal for the schedule.  The proposal was that  the first

16 hearing, one relating to Vegas, which would inclu de ArccOS and

17 RipGuard and the CSS issues, would be February 17 th through

18 19th, which is a Tuesday through Thursday, giving  Real another

19 three weeks, essentially, to do this discovery th an they would

20 normally have to do the discovery they want to do  on the

21 ArccOS/RipGuard issue.

22 And then, we proposed the second hearing related to

23 Facet issues not covered by the first hearing wou ld be

24 mid-March, March 16 through 18.  That was our pro posal.  I'll

25 let Mr. Cunningham speak for himself, but I think  their view

Sahar McVickar, C.S.R. No. 12963, RPR
Official Court Reporter, U.S. District Court

(415) 626-6060

Case3:08-cv-04548-MHP   Document466    Filed09/16/09   Page39 of 82



    40

 1 was that it should all be one hearing.

 2 THE COURT:  They are still on that.

 3 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  We're still on that.  We would be

 4 delighted to do the whole thing on March 16th, 17 th, and 18th.

 5 That would work fine for us.

 6 We have a problem with trying to do RipGuard and

 7 ArccOS as soon as mid-February because, and indul ge me a little

 8 bit while I explain this, because we are at the b ottom of the

 9 mountain.  We truly don't understand anything abo ut it.

10 And, I know that Mr. Singla took testimony from s ome

11 of our engineers who used the term, ArccOS, but I 'm telling you

12 that the lawyers and our experts, we don't even k now, really,

13 where to begin or where the discovery is going to  take us.

14 We had a surreal conversation where we said we ma y

15 need to see source code from ArccOS; Mr. Singla l aughed at us,

16 but we know so little about the technology, we do n't know what

17 we don't know.

18 And I would contrast to that -- 

19 THE COURT:  You and Rumsfeld, apparently, right?

20 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  Cagey and Rumsfeld: it's a great

21 day.

22 (Laughter.)  

23 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  I would contrast to that what the

24 studios know about Facet code.  The reason they c an tell you

25 how many lines of code it is and how long it will  take is
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 1 because we gave it to them over a month ago, and they have had

 2 a chance to work on it.  We might be in the very same position

 3 if we had ArccOS or RipGuard and had started to g o through it,

 4 but we can't do that.  So, we don't think we can be ready by

 5 February.

 6 THE COURT:  You are playing the poor lawyer a little

 7 too much, Mr. Cunningham.

 8 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  Well, okay, so then let me come

 9 back to what our witnesses said.

10 Our witnesses really did not purport to have any

11 kind of mastery of ArccOS or RipGuard.  And, it w as actually

12 much less than that.  I was at one of the deposit ions: this

13 guy, Brennan, really didn't know about it.  They actually used

14 the phrase ArccOS as a summary headline for a who le bunch of

15 different problems with making DVDs work, and the y didn't know

16 what was causing them.  They called them all Arcc OS.  They

17 didn't know whether it was copy protection or dus t or

18 scratches, or what.  They really didn't.  So that  was the

19 testimony I heard on that.  The point is, if Marc h is

20 available, let's do it all in March, and everyone  should be

21 completely ready by then.

22 Remember, we are the ones under the TRO.  And it' s

23 bizarre for me to be under a TRO and screaming fr om more time.

24 And, I will say the only reason we heard for why they insist on

25 going sooner is that's what their client wants to  do.  And, I
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 1 get the impression that they sense an opportunity  here and they

 2 want to sort of exploit it.  And that is not fair  because the

 3 opportunity is that we haven't had a chance to do  discovery

 4 that we need to do.

 5 THE COURT:  Well, if there is just that short a

 6 period of time between the two and the TRO stays in effect,

 7 doesn't it make some sense just to do it all at o nce rather

 8 than run the risk that we may have some duplicati on?

 9 MR. WILLIAMS:  Well, Your Honor, first of all, Your

10 Honor asked us to be reasonable, and we feel as t hough we were

11 reasonable and they were unreasonable.  And, if w e go halfway

12 in between that, we end up in a place where it's not been

13 reasonable.

14 The way that we thought -- 

15 THE COURT:  I can make all of you miserable.

16 MR. WILLIAMS:  I understand that.

17 THE COURT:  You know, that's one thing; we can never

18 make you all happy -- 

19 MR. WILLIAMS:  I know.  

20 THE COURT:  So, that is the ultimate objective, is

21 to make you all equally miserable.

22 (Laughter.)  

23 MR. WILLIAMS:  Let me describe the way in which we

24 think we are being reasonable.  The second hearin g date that I

25 mentioned, the March 16 through 18th date, that's  a date where,
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 1 at least on the current trial schedule I have, I have a trial

 2 that starts on the 17th that is supposed to last for two months

 3 up here in San Francisco.  Our client was willing  to say,

 4 Williams, you may not be here for that second dat e, we are not

 5 sure whether the second date would even happen, b ut the first

 6 date they do require that I be here on the date o n which the

 7 Vegas matter is litigated, which would include, a ccording to

 8 what the Court has indicated, the ArccOS and RipG uard matters.

 9 We were willing to move those dates considerably from the

10 January hearing.

11 I would like to make a comment, and I don't want to

12 be drawn into a he said/she said, but I think You r Honor is

13 exactly right about the poor lawyer arguments bei ng made

14 because the fact of the matter is that RealNetwor ks is the

15 party that designed its technology to circumvent,  to avoid

16 ArccOS and RipGuard.  There cannot be any reasona ble doubt

17 about that based upon e-mails that have been prod uced in

18 discovery.  It really -- we have them here, we ca n give them to

19 the Court, but I represent to the Court that the suggestion

20 that they will have a good response to their effo rts to bypass

21 those protection devices will be a -- I'm dying t o hear what it

22 may be.  

23 So, the point is, they know and have known that

24 we've had ArccOS and RipGuard allegations that we 've been

25 making since the time we first exchanged search t erms back in
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 1 October, October 28th.  We included both those te rms then.  We

 2 then answered interrogatories talking about ArccO S and

 3 RipGuard.  

 4 So, to the extent that RealNetworks wanted to do

 5 discovery, and they have told us exactly the disc overy they

 6 want to do, they want to serve subpoenas on Macro vision and on

 7 Sony, the Sony division that makes ArccOS.  They want to take

 8 30(b)(6) depositions of a couple of the studios w ho implement

 9 those protection devices, and that's fine.  But t he notion that

10 the whole thing has to be put off until mid-March , Your Honor,

11 owing to their efforts to learn about ArccOS and RipGuard, when

12 it is the very same gentlemen who designed the Ve gas product to

13 bypass those items is asking a lot.  And, we thin k we've been

14 reasonable to move that time.  

15 We respectfully request that the first hearing go

16 forward in the manner that the Court described in  mid-February.

17 That gives them an additional three weeks.  The i ssue that we

18 have with respect to the source code for Facet is  that it takes

19 nearly two months to review that code.  Our peopl e will get on

20 it right away.  We need the authorization to tell  our clients

21 what this product is; we don't have that at this moment.

22 And so, we think we are being realistic when we s ay

23 that we need mid-March in order to get into the F acet issue.  

24 THE COURT:  What is the earliest time you think you

25 could be ready on Facet?  

Sahar McVickar, C.S.R. No. 12963, RPR
Official Court Reporter, U.S. District Court

(415) 626-6060

Case3:08-cv-04548-MHP   Document466    Filed09/16/09   Page44 of 82



    45

 1 MR. SINGLA:  Your Honor, there's a few different

 2 issues with that.  We sat down and talked about i t for quite

 3 some length; I think mid-March is pushing it, fro m our

 4 perspective, because the way that we have access to the source

 5 code, and this is in some letters that were sent to the Court a

 6 few weeks ago, it's in Wilson Sonsini's office in  San

 7 Francisco.  There's one computer, two computers.  

 8 That's the only place we have access to the sourc e

 9 code, so our consultants have to fly up, work in those offices

10 for a limited number of hours per week.  And so, even if we got

11 identification from them tomorrow of the relevant  portions, and

12 our people started working next week, after Chris tmas, they

13 need at least six weeks to just go through the co de and analyze

14 it.  That is the best estimate I have, and it's b ased on the

15 amount of time they took with the Real DVD code.  

16 And obviously, these people are also going to be

17 preparing for the first hearing, doing other thin gs related to

18 Vegas.  And so that puts us into mid-February, at  which time

19 they'll produce expert reports, be deposed, there  will be

20 briefing; we can't see it on Facet until mid-Marc h.

21 And, given Mr. Williams' trial schedule, that is why

22 we are suggesting sticking with the Court's origi nal plan of

23 some kind of bifurcation, talking about Vegas and  everything

24 about Vegas and any duplicative issues in the fir st hearing,

25 late January or mid-February, even maybe late Feb ruary, I
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 1 suppose would be theoretically possible, and push ing Facet off

 2 until we had time to look at the source code.

 3 (Court and clerk confer.)  

 4 THE COURT:  Can you print out my February and March

 5 for me so I can look at it?  You can do that fast er than I can

 6 access my computer.  You do one of those calendar  lists.

 7 THE CLERK:  You want February -- 

 8 THE COURT:  And March.  

 9 While he's checking on that, now, have you worked

10 out the situation with the protective order and a ccess to the

11 source code and whatever else there is an issue w ith respect to

12 access?  

13 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  On that, each side submitted a

14 letter brief for the Court on November 20th.  We have different

15 positions, and -- 

16 THE COURT:  And you are still there.

17 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  There hasn't been any further

18 dialogue on that.  

19 MR. SINGLA:  We've been operating under whatever

20 restrictions RealNetworks has imposed, which are actually

21 beyond even what they have proposed in their prot ective order.

22 So, what they have done is made the source code a vailable only

23 in Wilson Sonsini's offices in San Francisco.  We  have had no

24 choice, that is what we have been living with.

25 THE COURT:  What about the experts?  Now, you each
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 1 have your own experts?  

 2 MR. SINGLA:  Yes, Your Honor, we each have our own

 3 experts.

 4 THE COURT:  And your experts have had access to the

 5 code, right?

 6 MR. SINGLA:  Yes, Your Honor.

 7 THE COURT:  What concerned me was the number of

 8 lawyers and spreading this stuff around.  I would  like to have

 9 it as confined as possible.  And so, if it could be confined in

10 two places, perhaps and accessible -- I don't kno w why it needs

11 to be accessible to every lawyer just because som ebody decides,

12 you know, some client decides to have two sets of  lawyers and

13 both sets of lawyers have to have it -- that one set of lawyers

14 would have some responsibility for that along wit h the expert.

15 And -- I mean because what your clients need to k now

16 is not, quote, "how it works," because most of th em wouldn't

17 even know, maybe, except for their expert, but wh at it does,

18 right?  I mean, they really need to know what doe s it do?  What

19 is it capable of doing, et cetera?  In lay terms.   But, how it

20 works, that's what your experts need to know.  Th at is sort of

21 a simplification, I know, but you understand what  I'm saying,

22 right?  

23 MR. SINGLA:  I do, Your Honor.  But one thing maybe

24 I could propose from our side is we could reduce the number of

25 copies we need, perhaps, to -- I'm going to speak  for the DVD
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 1 CCA -- maybe if we produced three for both sets o f defendants:

 2 One with one of our experts, one with one of thei r experts, and

 3 then one copy at Munger Tolles' offices, that may be the White &

 4 Case lawyers could come to our office, if they ne ed to.

 5 Would that work?

 6 MR. LAMBERT:  That might work.  

 7 One other, to cut through -- 

 8 THE COURT REPORTER:  Your appearance for me?  

 9 MR. LAMBERT:  I'm sorry.  Mark Lambert, White &

10 Case, for DVD CCA.  

11 One alternative that might work is that we could

12 limit access to particular lawyers on the teams b y naming names

13 who are working on that aspect of the case; that would

14 substantially constrain access.

15 THE COURT:  Because it would make me nervous to have

16 proprietary source code floating around so many p laces and so

17 many different people having their hands on it.  So, you know,

18 if we could put some reasonable limitation on it.   

19 And you are talking about having it available in

20 three places instead of two?  

21 MR. SINGLA:  That would be for both defendants,

22 Your Honor.  So it would be one for Munger Tolles , or for a

23 lawyer set that both White & Case lawyers and Mun ger Tolles

24 lawyers could access, and then one for one of our  experts and

25 one for one of the DVD CCA experts.  
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 1 MR. STEERE:  The only thing I would add to that is

 2 that one of the Akin lawyers would need access as  well, one

 3 individual.

 4 MR. SINGLA:  That is not an extra copy of the code.

 5 MR. DIBOISE:  Your Honor?  

 6 THE COURT:  Yes?

 7 MR. DIBOISE:  Mr. DiBoise for RealNetworks.

 8 When you say, "a copy," are you talking the

 9 electronic copy or a printed copy?  Because those  things are

10 different to my client.  

11 THE COURT:  Um-hmm.

12 MR. DIBOISE:  So, with respect to electronic copies,

13 the position that we would take is that we are --  we offered in

14 the compromise that we offered to the protective order to

15 permit the lawyers to have a copy in their office s.  And it

16 shouldn't be unreasonable to require their expert s to come to

17 the lawyers' office, because as officers of the C ourt, we are

18 obviously required to comply with the terms of th e protective

19 order.

20 I know my client would feel better under that

21 circumstance than to have our code sitting in som e third-party

22 expert's office, where we don't know what is goin g to happen.

23 I do know what reasonably happens in my office, a nd I can

24 expect what reasonably happens in these gentlemen 's offices.

25 And I can tell my client with some degree of assu rance that
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 1 their code is going to be protected.

 2 THE COURT:  That's fine, if they are in offices that

 3 are accessible to the expert.  The experts, as I recall, one of

 4 the experts is from California, and another one i s from

 5 Virginia?  

 6 MR. SINGLA:  Yes, one is in Virginia and one in

 7 Santa Barbara.  And so making them available in o ur offices, it

 8 is a little burdensome.  It is going to slow thin gs down in

 9 terms of our view.  It has so far slowed things d own.  

10 I would point out, for what it's worth, that in t he

11 litigation against RealNetworks that I was involv ed in with

12 Microsoft, the issue of source code came up, and RealNetworks

13 insisted on and got from Microsoft source code, e lectronic

14 copies for its consultants and experts.

15 This is done, pretty regularly, in litigation.  A nd

16 I understand the Court's concern with the number of copies, but

17 an expert who signs an agreement to abide by all the

18 restrictions in the protective order, and we all agree to

19 whatever set of restrictions is reasonable, I don 't see why

20 they can't be trusted.

21 THE COURT:  I don't think that's unreasonable, I

22 think the problem is when the numbers of copies f loating around

23 gets to be -- and, I know, I am using the word "f loating," and

24 I shouldn't use it that loosely, right?  But, it just happens

25 that things are more likely to float around when there are too
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 1 many copies around.  

 2 If we could keep the number of copies down -- and

 3 it's unfortunate that the experts live where they  live, but, I

 4 guess, you get the experts where you find them.  But, I think

 5 that if they can have access in their offices but  then keep the

 6 number, because there are just two of them, and k eep the

 7 numbers for the lawyers down to a number.  And if  you have two

 8 law firms representing one side or one party or a  group of

 9 parties, then just pick one lawyer, and that woul d be it.  And

10 then how many lawyers would you have?  

11 MR. SINGLA:  I think -- 

12 THE COURT:  How many lawyers would that implicate,

13 now?  

14 MR. SINGLA:  How many individual lawyers or copies

15 of the source code, Your Honor?

16 THE COURT:  How many individual lawyers would be

17 implicated.

18 MR. SINGLA:  I think from the studio's perspective

19 maybe three or four.

20 THE COURT:  But Munger Tolles is representing all of

21 the studios, right?

22 MR. SINGLA:  Yes, Your Honor.

23 THE COURT:  Why do you need more than one copy?

24 MR. SINGLA:  No, no, not more than one copy, Your

25 Honor, one copy at the Munger Tolles offices.
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 1 THE COURT:  Okay.  Okay.

 2 MR. SINGLA:  One copy.

 3 THE COURT:  Okay.  

 4 And then, what with respect to -- with White & Ca se

 5 that is representing DVD?  

 6 MR. STEERE:  White & Case and Akin Gump.  

 7 And we can share a copy.

 8 THE COURT:  Share a copy.

 9 MR. STEERE:  Right.

10 THE COURT:  You got two firms share a copy.  

11 MR. SINGLA:  That's right, Your Honor.  

12 THE COURT:  That would be two copies for the

13 lawyers, right?  

14 MR. SINGLA:  Yes, Your Honor.

15 THE COURT:  And then one each for the two experts?

16 MR. SINGLA:  Yes, Your Honor.

17 (Plaintiff's counsel confer.)  

18 MR. DIBOISE:  No, hold on.  

19 That's all right, Your Honor. We'll make -- as lo ng

20 as we abide by all the restrictions.

21 THE COURT:  Well, yes.  And they are going to have

22 to sign before they receive copies -- before the experts

23 receive copies, they are going to have to sign so mething that

24 holds them responsible.  And they should understa nd that once

25 they have signed that -- you submit it to me so t hat I can sign
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 1 off and make it an order.  And they will understa nd that any

 2 violation of that is contempt of court.  And ther e is no

 3 question about it, then.

 4 Okay, does that take care of that issue, then?  

 5 MR. DIBOISE:  With respect to the expert's access,

 6 yes.

 7 THE COURT:  Yes.  

 8 MR. DIBOISE:  Now, Your Honor, there is a subsidiary

 9 issue, and I just want to be clear about this.  

10 The form in which the code is provided should onl y

11 be read only so that they can read it.  If they n eed to

12 manipulate the data that is fine, but we don't wa nt them

13 printing copies and having copies proliferating.

14 THE COURT:  Oh yes, oh, it's read only, sure.  I

15 mean, you are not going to -- well, you are not t o make copies.

16 I don't what the meaning of that might be to an e xpert, so

17 maybe I'm using language I shouldn't use, but cer tainly not

18 making copies of it.  

19 MR. SINGLA:  I agree with that, Your Honor.  I think

20 that makes sense.  And I'm not exactly sure what Counsel has in

21 mind.  But, certainly, we would agree, and we can  draft

22 language they can't make additional copies -- 

23 THE COURT:  Um-hmm.

24 MR. SINGLA:  That makes sense.

25 THE COURT:  Nor can the lawyers.
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 1 MR. SINGLA:  Nor can the lawyers.

 2 But they would need the ability to, for example, try

 3 changing something, right, and seeing what happen s in the copy

 4 that they have.  So I don't know, when they say " read only,"

 5 I'm not exactly sure what Counsel has in mind.

 6 And on the printout -- 

 7 MR. DIBOISE:  I can be very clear, Your Honor.

 8 What I mean is, it's on one machine; that machine

 9 stays in Counsel's office or the expert's office.   No printed

10 copies are made other than in that office and tak en out of that

11 office.  No copies of the code are put on a lapto p or any other

12 storage device -- 

13 THE COURT:  Fine.

14 MR. DIBOISE:  Taken out of the office.  That is what

15 I mean.  They can do whatever they want to do wit h the code in

16 the office on that machine.

17 THE COURT:  In the office on that one computer.  

18 MR. SINGLA:  That's fine, Your Honor, as long as

19 they can use printouts in that office.

20 MR. DIBOISE:  That's fine as well, Your Honor.

21 THE COURT:  Okay.  So why don't you draft it up so

22 it's clear and I don't end up having to hold a co ntempt

23 hearing, which I hope I won't have do, and it not  being clear

24 what the expert was supposed to do, okay?  So dra ft something

25 up.  

Sahar McVickar, C.S.R. No. 12963, RPR
Official Court Reporter, U.S. District Court

(415) 626-6060

Case3:08-cv-04548-MHP   Document466    Filed09/16/09   Page54 of 82



    55

 1 MR. BARTH:  Your Honor, if I may?

 2 THE COURT:  Yes.

 3 MR. BARTH:  Lawrence Barth, Munger Tolles for the

 4 studio defendants.

 5 THE COURT:  Yes.

 6 MR. BARTH:  We are very close, actually, to being

 7 resolved on the protective order.  We have submit ted two

 8 versions of it, with two issues.  One of them was  source code;

 9 I'm confident after that discussion we can now wo rk together to

10 submit one version of that.

11 THE COURT:  Okay, fine.

12 MR. BARTH:  And there was one other competing issue

13 that we couldn't agree on, so let's decide it, an d that will be

14 part of what we submit to the Court.

15 There was a disagreement with respect to counsel for

16 the Motion Picture Association of America, Messrs . Robbins and

17 Goeckner, who are sitting at table with us today.

18 THE COURT:  Um-hmm.  

19 MR. BARTH:  They are of record in this case.  They

20 are, obviously, officers of the Court, and the ve rsion of the

21 protective order that we submitted included them as outside

22 counsel, as they are in this case.

23 We got an objection from Wilson Sonsini to their

24 being characterized as outside counsel, despite t he fact that

25 lawyers for the MPA have represented the studios for decades;
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 1 despite the fact that it's not unusual, lawyers f or the RIAA

 2 have represented the plaintiffs in a case that yo u are well

 3 familiar with; despite the fact that Mr. Robbins has

 4 represented the studio parties in at least ten CS S cases.

 5 THE COURT:  But the studios are already represented,

 6 right?

 7 MR. BARTH:  That is house counsel.

 8 THE COURT:  And Munger Tolles is house counsel?

 9 MR. BARTH:  No, no.  We have defined outside counsel

10 as Munger Tolles -- 

11 THE COURT:  Um-hmm.

12 MR. BARTH:  Mitchell Silberberg and Knupp and

13 Messrs. Robbins and Goeckner.  That is how we def ine it.

14 This is the role they have played, as I say, for

15 decades, with the studios.  And, for some reason,  it drew an

16 objection.

17 THE COURT:  Well, but it's an association that is an

18 association with respect to the, you know, the st udio parties,

19 right?

20 MR. BARTH:  Yes.  The studios have chosen to hire

21 them and us as their outside counsel, that's exac tly right.

22 THE COURT:  Well, that is an additional set of

23 counsel that are not going to be -- have that acc ess.  You

24 know, we've got to have some limits.  And we have  enough

25 already.
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 1 MR. BARTH:  There was -- 

 2 THE COURT:  The studios have their lawyers.  You are

 3 their lawyers.

 4 MR. BARTH:  We are their lawyers with respect, Your

 5 Honor.

 6 THE COURT:  Well, but I said only one set of lawyers

 7 for a party.  And, by coming in as an association , that's sort

 8 of adding to it, the burden.  And, no, it's not n ecessary.

 9 MR. BARTH:  Let me suggest something, if the Court

10 is concerned about numbers.  There was a discussi on we had

11 about a compromise, the compromise -- 

12 THE COURT:  See, when you come to me you don't get a

13 compromise anymore.  I've made a ruling.

14 MR. BARTH:  Let me just tell you what the compromise

15 was, and if it doesn't seem sensible, I know you' ll let me

16 know.  

17 The compromise was each of the studios has three

18 seats among the highly confidential information u niverse, that

19 is, that information can be shared with up to 18 lawyers.  The

20 compromise was that one of the studios give up on e of their

21 seats in favor of Mr. Robbins or Mr. Goeckner, an d we can live

22 with that.  But not being able to talk to MPAA co unsel about

23 issues of common interest to all the studios -- 

24 THE COURT:  But you can talk with them without their

25 having access to the source code.
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 1 MR. BARTH:  No, no, it's not about source code.

 2 They will not get access to source code.  This is  about --

 3 THE COURT:  Okay, what is this about having access

 4 to?

 5 MR. BARTH:  Highly confidential information other

 6 than source code.  For example, the new platform information,

 7 the sorts of things that we need to consult with them about day

 8 to day.  My mistake, I should have started by mak ing clear,

 9 this is not about source code.

10 THE COURT:  What about that with respect to -- 

11 MR. DIBOISE:  With respect to the -- 

12 THE COURT:  -- this is not about source code?

13 MR. DIBOISE:  With respect to MPAA, they are

14 employees of a trade association that represents more studios

15 than are parties in this litigation.  They have, arguably,

16 responsibilities to non-parties to this litigatio n that we

17 don't think should be -- and we don't think they should be

18 sharing this information.  I don't know how they don't, in a

19 sense, collectively represent somebody outside of  this

20 litigation.  And that is a concern that we have.

21 Now, we made an offer of compromise, but -- 

22 THE COURT:  What was your offer of compromise?

23 MR. DIBOISE:  Just as Mr. Barth said, if they want

24 to give up one of their inside counsel seats to M r. -- I don't

25 know who they are, Mr. Robbins and whoever, Mr. G oeckner, that
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 1 was acceptable.  But, the number of lawyers has t o be contained

 2 to what we offered them.

 3 THE COURT:  How many seats are we talking about

 4 here?  

 5 MR. DIBOISE:  We said 18.  There are six studios.

 6 We allowed them to have three inside counsel to h ave -- privy

 7 to this information.  They wanted all 18 plus Mr.  Goeckner and

 8 Mr. Robbins.

 9 MR. BARTH:  We're fine -- 

10 MR. DIBOISE:  And if they want to take -- 

11 Sorry, you want to concede --

12 THE COURT:  You want me to tell you what I would do,

13 then?  

14 MR. BARTH:  We're fine -- 

15 THE COURT:  I would say you lose the third seat for

16 everybody and for those two.  

17 MR. BARTH:  We are fine with 18, Your Honor.  

18 I need to fix something for the record, Your Hono r.

19 I don't believe the MPAA represents anybody but o ur clients in

20 this action.

21 MR. DIBOISE:  No, no, the MPAA is a trade

22 association that represents more studios than are  clients in

23 this party.  

24 MR. BARTH:  Pardon me, but Mr. Goeckner is standing

25 next to me, and that is incorrect, Your Honor.  T hey represent
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 1 the six major motion picture studios.

 2 THE COURT:  Do they have any other members besides

 3 the six major motion picture studios here?  

 4 MR. GOEKNER:  Your Honor, this is Greg Goeckner.

 5 I'm the general counsel of the Motion Picture Ass ociation.  We

 6 have six members; they are all parties in this ca se.

 7 THE COURT:  You have only six members?

 8 MR. GOEKNER:  Six members.

 9 MR. DIBOISE:  I misunderstood.

10 THE COURT:  I guess their membership is strong.  

11 MR. GOEKNER:  We did in the past -- 

12 THE COURT:  They don't represent indies, I guess.

13 (Laughter.)  

14 MR. BARTH:  I think we're resolved, Your Honor, if

15 we have 18 seats.  And, we'll submit a protective  order that I

16 think we can now both agree on.  

17 MR. DIBOISE:  No, I heard the Court say that you

18 lose every third -- 

19 THE COURT:  Well, that was something else -- if you

20 had agreed to something else earlier, then that's  fine.  But I

21 said, you know, first of all, I don't know why yo u need three

22 seats -- I mean three counsel, rather, for each s eat.  So drop

23 that third seat, and you can have the other two g entleman

24 there.  Everybody drops their third seat.

25 MR. DIBOISE:  Sounds good to us, Your Honor.

Sahar McVickar, C.S.R. No. 12963, RPR
Official Court Reporter, U.S. District Court

(415) 626-6060

Case3:08-cv-04548-MHP   Document466    Filed09/16/09   Page60 of 82



    61

 1 MR. BARTH:  I was fine with the original compromise

 2 that was offered by Wilson Sonsini, which was one  studio drops

 3 one, and Mr. Robbins -- 

 4 THE COURT:  That is the problem when you bring it to

 5 me.  And I take what looks reasonable to me, and that is why do

 6 you need three for each studio?  

 7 So, drop the third seat for each studio, and you can

 8 add the two gentleman.  

 9 MR. BARTH:  I could answer it, if the Court wanted

10 me to, but the fact is, there are lawyers inside each studio

11 responsible for copy protection.  And the general  counsel -- 

12 THE COURT:  Well, that may be.  And four would look

13 even better, right?  And five would be the best.  But that's

14 it.  So that's what you got.  Now, that will teac h you to work

15 things out on your own instead of bringing them t o me.

16 Is that clear now?  

17 MR. BARTH:  We now have a protective order.  Thank

18 you.

19 THE COURT:  Yes, you do.  Okay.

20 MR. SINGLA:  Your Honor, there's one other issue

21 that we wanted to raise.  And, I don't know if th e Court wants

22 to talk about scheduling first or -- 

23 THE COURT:  Well, I haven't had a chance to look at

24 the calendar, I've been talking to you all.

25 But, at any rate, there was also an issue -- I do n't
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 1 know if I can put my hands on the papers -- that there was a

 2 letter having to do with Ms. Hamilton's depositio n; has that

 3 been resolved?  

 4 MR. SINGLA:  No, Your Honor, it has not.

 5 THE COURT:  Does that need to be resolved?

 6 MR. SINGLA:  We think it does, Your Honor.  We did

 7 speak to Ms. Hamilton, and she was available for deposition.

 8 And we are not sure what the latest mission -- ex actly what the

 9 status is.

10 It's our understanding, and we could be wrong, an d

11 Counsel could clarify, that RealNetworks is payin g this lawyer

12 who claims to represent or represents Ms. Hamilto n.  If that is

13 the case, we would ask that she be made available  at some

14 point.  

15 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  So -- 

16 MR. DIBOISE:  Hold on.

17 THE COURT:  Is there any reason why she shouldn't be

18 made available?  

19 MR. DIBOISE:  Your Honor, we don't represent her.

20 There is a signed declaration from a lawyer from the State of

21 Washington on this very issue that we submitted t his morning.

22 THE COURT:  I haven't seen that.  This is what I saw

23 that came in, I guess on Friday.  

24 MR. DIBOISE:  Right.  We made a filing in response

25 to that this morning sometime.
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 1 The issue is that Mr. Singla and counsel at Munge r

 2 Tolles, I assume, have been in direct contact wit h

 3 Ms. Hamilton's counsel for at least two weeks, pr obably.  And

 4 he has told them that he represents her.  So, I d on't know what

 5 can be done here with respect to Ms. Hamilton.  S he is a third

 6 party, former employee of the Real -- 

 7 THE COURT:  Was that the person in the courtroom?

 8 MR. DIBOISE:  No.  That's -- she was -- she is an

 9 in-house lawyer at RealNetworks but only here in their San

10 Francisco office because nobody can get out of Se attle because

11 of the weather.

12 THE COURT:  As soon as we started to discuss this,

13 she got up and walked out.  And I thought, oh, sh e is getting

14 out of here, she sees a subpoena coming.

15 (Laughter.)  

16 MR. DIBOISE:  No.  But the subpoena's issued out of

17 the District Court in the Western District of Was hington.  So

18 Mr. Chu, who is the lawyer representing Ms. Hamil ton, has

19 raised objections to their subpoena and has filed , you know, we

20 filed on his behalf his declaration and Ms. Hamil ton's

21 declaration on this very issue.  Your Court can l ook and see

22 the very words of the third-party witness and her  counsel on

23 this issue.  They are persons that need to be dea lt with on

24 this third-party deposition.

25 THE COURT:  If, in fact, what, has he made a motion
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 1 to quash in the Western District of Washington, o r something

 2 like that?

 3 MR. SINGLA:  No, he's filed objections, Your Honor;

 4 he has not made a motion to quash.  

 5 And I guess our question is whether RealNetworks is

 6 paying that counsel.  And that's what we have not  been able to

 7 get an answer to.  Because if RealNetworks -- our  view is if

 8 RealNetworks is paying for counsel, then they sho uld have some

 9 ability -- then we are concerned about what is go ing on, quite

10 frankly.

11 MR. DIBOISE:  There are a lot of things I would be

12 concerned about.

13 THE COURT:  What firm is Mr. Chu with?  

14 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  Mr. Chu is with a firm in

15 Washington.  He wasn't picked by us.  He wasn't p icked by Real.

16 THE COURT:  Is he paid by you?

17 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  I don't know the answer.  And I

18 think it will probably turn on Washington indemni fication law.

19 If it were California, they would probably have t o pay him, but

20 I don't know about Washington, and I don't know t he

21 arrangement.  

22 But Mr. Chu has his own ethical obligation to his

23 client.  He is not our guy; he is going his own w ay on this.

24 And he has explained why he has been unwilling to  make her

25 available for the depo dates that have been reque sted.  His
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 1 declaration explains and her declaration explains  she has been

 2 unemployed, she's been trying to do job interview s.  And it's

 3 for those reasons that she has been unavailable.

 4 So, I don't know what the issue here is.  I think

 5 that they are going to work something out in Janu ary.

 6 THE COURT:  Have you talked with Mr. Chu directly?  

 7 MR. SINGLA:  Yes, Your Honor.

 8 THE COURT:  Have you worked out -- have you at least

 9 discussed the possibility that there is a date so metime in the

10 not too far distant future when you can take her deposition?

11 MR. SINGLA:  He refuses to provide any date, Your

12 Honor.  He says he will discuss it in January.

13 THE COURT:  Where?

14 MR. SINGLA:  Sorry?

15 THE COURT:  Where?

16 MR. SINGLA:  Where would the deposition be?

17 THE COURT:  No, where are you going to discuss it,

18 in Court or on the phone?

19 MR. SINGLA:  On the phone, I suppose.  But he has

20 been unwilling to discuss any date for the deposi tion in

21 December.  And, given the upcoming hearing date t hat we have,

22 and the schedule for fact depositions -- 

23 THE COURT:  Well, now the hearing dates are a little

24 bit down the road.  So why don't you talk to him in early

25 January and try to get it resolved.
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 1 MR. SINGLA:  Okay.

 2 THE COURT:  By that time, I will have seen the

 3 declaration.  And you can get what ever informati on you need

 4 from him.

 5 Seems to me that, you know, what is -- he either has

 6 to produce her, or -- or, rather, she has to show  up for the

 7 deposition or, you know, if you subpoenaed her, y ou know, get

 8 an order quashing the subpoena.  I mean, you can' t just sort of

 9 all call up and object and object and then put yo u on hold.  So

10 I think that, you know, either you then have to c ompel

11 attendance or -- by way of motion -- or you'll ha ve to make a

12 motion to quash.  

13 MR. SINGLA:  Thank you, Your Honor.

14 THE COURT:  Okay?  So does that take care of it?

15 Anything else, then?  Is that it?

16 MR. WILLIAMS:  Just the schedule.

17 THE COURT:  Just the schedule.

18 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  There actually are a couple of

19 other things that we put in our letter, Your Hono r, one of

20 which was a dispute about -- 

21 THE COURT:  You mean the one you submitted today?

22 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  No -- yes, yeah, last night,

23 30(b)(6) depositions.

24 THE COURT:  Um-hmm.

25 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  We have produced our testifying
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 1 witnesses and depositions have been taken, but we  had asked to

 2 do 30(b)(6)'s of the DVD CCA and two of the six s tudios.  And

 3 the studios won't make witnesses available as 30( b)(6)

 4 witnesses.  They said they didn't have sufficient  time to

 5 prepare them as 30(b)(6) witnesses, and, therefor e, they

 6 couldn't go forward.  Maybe that discussion will be affected by

 7 the change in timing so that -- 

 8 THE COURT:  Is it just a question of you don't have

 9 time or the dates?

10 MR. BARTH:  I wish it were, Your Honor.  

11 Just some background:  In October we submitted

12 competing letters to the Court.  We agreed that w e should be

13 allowed to depose one another's testifying witnes ses, that is,

14 the witnesses who will testify at the hearing.  A nd we made a

15 proposal that we could depose up to five others.  They asked

16 for up to seven others, I think.  We couldn't rea ch agreement.

17 We submitted it, and the Court said six witnesses  each.

18 THE COURT:  That is just what I was thinking.

19 MR. BARTH:  And on the appointed day -- 

20 THE COURT:  Why not six?  

21 MR. BARTH:  On the appointed day, we sent over a

22 list of six names, six human beings, and in retur n we got

23 30(b)(6)notices with 28 categories, each asking t hat we

24 designate people to testify on behalf of entire s tudios on each

25 of 28 categories.
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 1 We felt that was unreasonable and communicated th at.

 2 We didn't stop there; we found people who can tes tify on some

 3 of those categories and shot their names back ove r and said

 4 they won't be in a position to testify on behalf of an

 5 organization, but they can certainly testify abou t what they

 6 know on these subjects.  And that was met with a "no."

 7 Since that time, we have gotten none of the other

 8 six back.  That's the story of the 30 (b)(6).

 9 THE COURT:  Have you exchanged witness lists for

10 that preliminary injunction hearing?

11 MR. BARTH:  We have.  And with respect to the

12 testifying witnesses, we don't seem to have an is sue.  We have

13 made those available for deposition.  These are t he wild card

14 depositions.

15 THE COURT:  Yeah, but there are only six wild cards.

16 MR. BARTH:  That's what the Court ordered, and we're

17 fine with that.  We sent over six names and got b ack these

18 litanies of 30(b)(6) -- 

19 THE COURT:  Well, you sent over six names of people

20 of RealNetworks under their control that you want  to depose,

21 right?

22 MR. BARTH:  Correct, including Ms. Hamilton.

23 THE COURT:  And you sent a list of six names to

24 them, right?

25 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  No.  We sent 30(b)(6)s for three
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 1 entities:  The DVD CCA, Sony, and Warner.  We did n't send

 2 names; we don't know the names.  We have been som ewhat

 3 transparent.  You can see who the folks are who h ave been doing

 4 our products and our projects, we don't know who is responsible

 5 for what at the studios.  So, if we could have na med names we

 6 would have named names.  We couldn't do that.

 7 THE COURT:  If you have six, then you can designate,

 8 you know, six 30(b(6) -- why didn't you just list , you know,

 9 essentially six 30(b)(6) witnesses?

10 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  That's what we did, but we only did

11 three, actually.  And they wouldn't give us any 3 0(b)(6)

12 witnesses.

13 THE COURT:  I'm not going to sit here and hash that

14 out.

15 You sit down, and you tell them what it is you wa nt

16 to cover.  

17 And you give them the six best witnesses that you

18 got on those and -- on those the issues, and that 's it.  And

19 you depose them.  

20 MR. BARTH:  Your Honor, if we are talking about six

21 people, we've never had a problem with that.  The  problem is

22 that the notices served would have called for, I don't know, 56

23 people to talk about 26 -- 

24 THE COURT:  Sit down and negotiate what it is you

25 want you really need to have covered because you are not going
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 1 to get more than six, okay?  

 2 MR. BARTH:  People, Your Honor?

 3 THE COURT:  Yes, six people.  

 4 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  I think we are there.  But we would

 5 be happy to take one person.

 6 THE COURT:  Just say give us the best six people

 7 that can cover the most of these areas.  Or, if t here are

 8 certain areas that are more important to you than  others and

 9 you can forego the other areas, then focus on tho se, okay?

10 MR. BARTH:  That's fine.

11 THE COURT:  How hard is that?  So just meet and

12 confer and do it.  

13 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  Okay.

14 THE COURT:  Does that take care of everything except

15 for the schedule, right?  Actually, I did get a b etter offer,

16 so I'm not sure about that February date.

17 Did you say you have another trial at some point?   

18 MR. BARTH:  I do, Your Honor, starting March 16th.

19 It's a six- to eight-week trial.

20 THE COURT:  Is it possible that you could be ready

21 in early March, like the first week of March, on the Facet as

22 well as -- 

23 MR. SINGLA:  The first week of March?

24 THE COURT:  As well as -- I'm drawing a blank right

25 now.

Sahar McVickar, C.S.R. No. 12963, RPR
Official Court Reporter, U.S. District Court

(415) 626-6060

Case3:08-cv-04548-MHP   Document466    Filed09/16/09   Page70 of 82



    71

 1 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  Vegas.

 2 THE COURT:  I keep wanting to say Vista.  I just

 3 have a mental block against Vegas.

 4 The first week of March on both of them?

 5 MR. SINGLA:  In all honesty, Your Honor, it's

 6 possible.  I'm very hesitant to say yes, just bec ause I'm not

 7 sure when we are going to get the information we need from the

 8 other side.  I don't know what issues our people will have.  

 9 I'm thinking early March means briefing in

10 mid-February and expert reports, then, by somethi ng like the

11 end of January, really pushing it.  That gives us  a very

12 limited window to get the source code analysis do ne.  And I'm

13 not sure when our people are going to be able to even start

14 with that.  

15 MR. DIBOISE:  Your Honor?  

16 THE COURT:  Yes?

17 MR. DIBOISE:  We can stagger the expert reports, if

18 that makes it easier to make those dates.  

19 MR. WILLIAMS:  I'm not sure I understand what

20 Counsel means, Your Honor.

21 MR. DIBOISE:  Well, we could get expert reports on

22 everything except Facet source code at a date -- I don't know

23 what the exact date would be, and then have -- 

24 THE COURT:  Late January, early February.

25 MR. DIBOISE:  And then have the Facet stuff, you
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 1 know, maybe five days before the briefs are due o r six days

 2 before the briefs are due.  And arguably, we are all going to

 3 work very hard, but with that much time we could have a

 4 staggered date when information is going to be co ming to us so

 5 we don't all get it at once and have to deal with  the whole

 6 mass of information all at the same time so we co uld be a bit

 7 more efficient.

 8 THE COURT:  What about that?  

 9 MR. SINGLA:  Well, Your Honor, I would like to try

10 to see if we can work this out.  The thing -- the  situation for

11 us is that they are very familiar with the Facet source code.

12 THE COURT:  Oh, sure, yeah.

13 MR. SINGLA:  Right?  And, we are at a great

14 disadvantage.  And when Counsel suggests, well, w e could just

15 get that work done in the five days before briefi ng, I think

16 that would be a great disadvantage to us because we are the

17 ones who need to have somebody spend six weeks wi th the code,

18 have someone explain it to the lawyers, do expert  reports, then

19 put that in the briefs.

20 For example, the Vegas source code that our

21 consultants have analyzed have proven to be very,  very helpful

22 in analyzing some of the issues that are going to  be heard at

23 the preliminary injunction.  So, I'm reluctant, I 'm personally

24 a little reluctant to sign up for a schedule in w hich we don't

25 get adequate time to look at the source code for this product.
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 1 I mean, one of the things -- I don't want to reha sh

 2 issues that Mr. Williams raised earlier, but in S eptember,

 3 their people testified that in September they wer e 60 days from

 4 launch on Facet.  So, if they were so interested in making sure

 5 that Facet was heard and determined by the Court in terms of

 6 its legality, there is no reason -- back then in September they

 7 thought they were about to launch, and yet they n ever raised

 8 it -- 

 9 THE COURT:  But we are where we are now.  

10 MR. SINGLA:  I understand.  I apologize.  I

11 understand.

12  THE COURT:  When is your trial finished?  And is it

13 going to go?  

14 MR. WILLIAMS:  We think it is going to go, Your

15 Honor.  It's in Superior Court here in San Franci sco in front

16 of the Judge Kramer.  And, we believe it's a hard  date.

17 That's my best information at the moment.

18 THE COURT:  Is that on a single assignment?

19 MR. WILLIAMS:  Yes.  

20 Your Honor, what I was going to suggest is, if th e

21 Court is inclined to put the Facet hearing in ear ly March,

22 then, at a minimum, we request very specific orde rs of the

23 Court regarding things that we have discussed wit h counsel for

24 Real that we would need in order to expedite the process.  And

25 I can list them, if I may:  To -- that we have au thority to
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 1 tell our clients today what Facet does, at least as far as what

 2 we understand, that is, the highly confidential d esignation.

 3 We can bypass that in order to describe to our cl ients and the

 4 operations people what it does, as a general matt er; number

 5 two, that the they point us to the source code se ctions that

 6 are the actual source code for the product; numbe r three, that

 7 we be permitted to get all of the technical speci fications, the

 8 current ones for the Facet product, not ones that  are outdated.

 9 THE COURT:  All of this by when?

10 MR. WILLIAMS:  Immediately.

11 Number 4; that we be permitted to redepose the tw o

12 witnesses who are the supposed experts on Facet w ho told us

13 that the technical specifications that we were lo oking at were

14 not the current versions; number 5, that they giv e us access to

15 prototypes for the product, or at least one or tw o so that we

16 can actually test the product -- 

17 THE COURT:  To your experts.

18 MR. WILLIAMS:  To our experts.

19 THE COURT:  And not to the -- 

20 MR. WILLIAMS:  Correct.  Not to our operations

21 people, correct, so that we can test it in the sa me way that

22 our experts test -- 

23 MR. DIBOISE:  Your Honor, with respect to the

24 specifications issue that has been raised by the studios here,

25 Mr. Barrett, who is the most senior executive at Real DVD
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 1 testified in his deposition that the best place t o find the

 2 technical specifications for Facet were in the so urce code.

 3 And to the extent that there is a, quote, "techni cal

 4 specification" for Facet, it is embodied in the s ource code,

 5 which we have given them.  So, we believe we have  complied

 6 substantially with what they are asking for on th at particular

 7 issue.

 8 We don't mind, and we are happy to try and work o ut

 9 a means to get both sides the information they ne ed.  We could

10 go through a wish list of what we need on ArccOS and RipGuard

11 and some other things, but I think that you shoul dn't have to

12 be sitting here making this decision.  If you tel l us a hearing

13 date, I'm sure we'll work out a schedule that get s each side

14 what they want.

15 THE COURT:  Well, let's get each side what it wants

16 by the end of the first week of January, which wo uld be

17 January 9th.  I'm keeping in mind that I don't th ink much is

18 going to happen for the rest of this week or next  week,

19 probably, but at least you can gear up for that.  By

20 January 9th.  

21 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  What are we being directed to give

22 by January 9th?

23 THE COURT:  Well, whatever it is that we are talking

24 about here.  He had a whole list.

25 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  Um-hmm.
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 1 THE COURT:  And, I didn't commit the whole list all

 2 to memory.  

 3 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  Right.  So the devil is in the

 4 details.  This is a new product.  The studios may  have

 5 competitive products.  So it's hard for us to say , hey, yeah

 6 sure, we'll give it to anyone in your organizatio n who wants to

 7 see it.

 8 THE COURT:  They are not saying that.

 9 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  Right, no, I said -- 

10 THE COURT:  The first one was the one about

11 discussing it with -- 

12 MR. WILLIAMS:  With the operations people.

13 THE COURT:  But the rest of it was, as I understand,

14 it -- 

15 MR. WILLIAMS:  Subject to -- 

16 THE COURT:  The attorneys and their experts.  

17 MR. WILLIAMS:  That's exactly right.  

18 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  Yeah but, are there no limits?  We

19 would like for there to be some sort of reasonabl e limits on

20 who can hear about the new product within the org anization.

21 THE COURT:  That's as to his number one item, right?

22 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  Yes.

23 THE COURT:  Everything else is subject to the

24 protective order, attorney eyes only for the atto rneys that are

25 designated, et cetera.  And, you are going to get  all of that

Sahar McVickar, C.S.R. No. 12963, RPR
Official Court Reporter, U.S. District Court

(415) 626-6060

Case3:08-cv-04548-MHP   Document466    Filed09/16/09   Page76 of 82



    77

 1 in and the experts.  That is it, the two experts.

 2 And then, with respect to the first item, you kno w,

 3 who would be the chosen few who would get this in formation?  

 4 MR. WILLIAMS:  May I talk to MPAA counsel?

 5 THE COURT:  Very briefly, because it's getting late.

 6 It's getting late for the court reporter and my c ourtroom

 7 deputy.

 8 (Counsel conferring.)    

 9 MR. WILLIAMS:  Your Honor, we would commit to

10 providing Counsel with the names of two individua ls, two

11 operations people, within each of the studios.  I  don't know

12 the names of those people right now, but we would  supply those

13 names to Counsel.

14 And again, this is just for a description of what

15 the product does, it's not getting them any of th e source code

16 or the -- that type of information.

17 THE COURT:  Okay.  And then work out a protective

18 order, that applies to them as well, that they wi ll have to

19 sign, okay?  

20 MR. WILLIAMS:  Very well, Your Honor.

21 THE COURT:  And identify those people.  And, there

22 is not to be any change without prior notificatio n.  For

23 example, if one of them comes down with some seri ous illness,

24 or something, and they have to substitute someone  else, that

25 person has to sign the protective order, and that  person is
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 1 substituted in, okay?  

 2 MR. WILLIAMS:  Yes, Your Honor.

 3 THE COURT:  Now, the only other thing, I think, is

 4 DVD CCA coming in on the preliminary hearing, inj unction

 5 hearing.  

 6 MR. STEERE:  That's right.

 7 THE COURT:  And, but the nature of your claim is

 8 mostly in the nature of a contract claim, right?

 9 MR. STEERE:  That's correct.

10 THE COURT:  So, are you entitled to preliminary

11 injunction?

12 MR. STEERE:  We believe so.  We believe, first of

13 all, there is a stipulation in the agreement, in the parties'

14 agreement, that this -- that breach creates irrep arable injury.

15 And we can cite authorities that we are entitled to injunctive

16 relief.

17 THE COURT:  Well, then, you are on the same track in

18 terms of the briefing, then.

19 MR. STEERE:  That's right.  And from the

20 beginning -- 

21 THE COURT:  And you have to have your separate

22 briefing because there are certain issues that pe rtain only to

23 you.  

24 MR. STEERE:  Correct.  

25 THE COURT:  Okay.
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 1 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  So, what our problem was, and,

 2 again, the timing may have shifted this, was we d idn't

 3 understand -- we were asking the same questions y ou were

 4 asking, what is going to be their basis for an in junction.  If

 5 it's different -- if it's not different from the studios, just

 6 pile on with the studios.  If it is different, wh at is it?  And

 7 what's different?

 8 THE COURT:  I guess we'll find out from their

 9 briefing.  

10 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  Right.  And our concern was we

11 weren't going to find out in time.  

12 MR. STEERE:  They'll find out.  They've already got

13 our interrogatory answers.  We have provided deta iled responses

14 to their interrogatories.

15 THE COURT:  You know, you can get on the phone and

16 talk, too.  I mean, the adversary system does not  prevent you

17 from talking to each other, right?  

18 MR. STEERE:  Well, we've tried that.  

19 THE COURT:  Well, do it, then.  That's an order.

20 Christmas cheer be damned.  Just do it.  The rest  of the year,

21 too.

22 And then, I think what we are looking at is start ing

23 something like this probably around on March 3rd,  when the rest

24 of my calendar be damned.  

25 MR. DIBOISE:  Your Honor?
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 1 THE COURT:  Yes?

 2 MR. DIBOISE:  One point.  On the list of materials

 3 that we are to provide to them by the end of Janu ary 9th -- 

 4 THE COURT:  Um-hmm.

 5 MR. DIBOISE:  There is the question of our discovery

 6 of them with respect to RipGuard and ArccOS.

 7 I can read a list the same way that they read a

 8 list. We would like some information --

 9 THE COURT:  No, don't read a list.

10 MR. DIBOISE:  I wasn't going to.

11 THE COURT:  Just sit down and work it out, okay?

12 MR. DIBOISE:  We will, Your Honor.

13 THE COURT:  You can exchange documents without all

14 this formal requests, you know.

15 MR. DIBOISE:  I understand.  But, I just wanted to

16 be clear, because we should be able to get the sa me -- 

17 THE COURT:  It's a two-way street.  Whatever you are

18 entitled to, you ask for it.  Whatever you need a t this stage

19 that you are discussing, then let's -- and I'm no t sure what it

20 is, so -- 

21 MR. DIBOISE:  We'll try to be reasonable.

22 THE COURT:  January the 9th.  

23 MR. SINGLA:  Your Honor, on March 3rd, how many days

24 was the Court thinking?

25 THE COURT:  I don't know.  Until we are finished.
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 1 MR. SINGLA:  Okay.

 2 THE COURT:  I haven't thought about that.  I'll

 3 think about that down the road, okay?

 4 MR. SINGLA:  Is the Court suggesting all day?

 5 THE COURT:  Probably so, yeah, because I have some

 6 other cases set for trial, but we'll have to bump  those back a

 7 little bit.  

 8 MR. SINGLA:  Should the parties work out the

 9 briefing schedule, or does the Court have a date by which it

10 would like all the briefs?

11 THE COURT:  Why don't you try to work out a briefing

12 schedule.  If I don't like it, I will change it, okay?  Because

13 it is late.  

14 MR. STEERE:  Thank you.  

15 MR. WILLIAMS:  Thank you, Your Honor.  

16 Sorry to go late.

17 MR. SINGLA:  Thank you very much.  

18 MR. CUNNINGHAM:  Thank you, Your Honor.

19 (Proceedings adjourned at 5:40 p.m.)   

20  

21 ---o0o---  

22  

23  

24

25
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